
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Development Control and Regulatory Board  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Thursday, 13 June 2019 at 2.00 pm 

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room - County Hall 

Contact: Mr E. Walters (Tel: 0116 3052583) 

Email: euan.walters@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. I. E. G. Bentley CC 

Mr. M. H. Charlesworth CC 
Mr. B. Crooks CC 

Mr. D. A. Gamble CC 
Mr. T. Gillard CC 

Mr. D. Harrison CC 
 

Mr. D. Jennings CC 
Mr. W. Liquorish JP CC 
Mrs. J. Richards CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. M. Wright CC 
Mr. M. B. Wyatt CC 
 

 
Please note: this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s web site at www.leicestershire.gov.uk 
– Notices will be on display at the meeting explaining the arrangements. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item     

 
1.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2019.  
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by Members under Standing Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the Chairman has decided to take 
as urgent elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda.  
 

 

6.  
  

Presentation of petitions under Standing Order 36.  
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/public-involvement/watch-council-meetings-online


 

 

 Reports of the Chief Executive on Planning Applications - County Council 
Applications. 
 

7.  
  

2019/0564/03 (2019/REG3Mi/0080/LCC) - Leicestershire County 
Council - Application for planning permission to construct new 
agricultural building to house livestock - Penhill Farm, Cotes-De-Val, 
Gilmorton.  
 

(Pages 9 - 14) 

8.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has decided to take as urgent.  
 

 

9.  
  

Chairman's announcements.  
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Development Control and Regulatory Board held at County 
Hall, Glenfield on Thursday, 23 May 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. J. G. Coxon CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. I. E. G. Bentley CC 
Mr. M. H. Charlesworth CC 
Mr. B. Crooks CC 
Mr. T. Gillard CC 
Mr. D. Harrison CC 
Mr. D. Jennings CC 
 

Mr. J. Kaufman CC 
Mr. W. Liquorish JP CC 
Mrs. J. Richards CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. M. Wright CC 
Mr. M. B. Wyatt CC 
 

 
1. Appointment of Chairman.  

 
It was noted that Mr. J. G. Coxon CC had been appointed Chairman-elect at the Annual 
Meeting of the County Council on 15 May 2019. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Mr. J. G. Coxon CC be appointed Chairman of the Development Control and 
Regulatory Board until the date of the Annual Meeting of the County Council in 2020. 
 
 

2. Election of Vice Chairman.  
 
It was proposed, and seconded "That Mr. T. Gillard CC be appointed Vice-Chairman". 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Mr. T. Gillard CC be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Development Control and 
Regulatory Board until the date of the Annual Meeting of the County Council in 2020. 
 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

4. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

5. Questions asked by Members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

3 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

6. Urgent items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

7. Declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
It was noted that all members who were also members of a Parish, Town or District 
Council, or Liaison Committee would have personal interests in those applications which 
relate to areas covered by those authorities. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

8. Presentation of petitions.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no petitions had been received under Standing Order 
36. 
 

9. 2018/1204/06 (2018/Reg3Ma/0182/LCC): Leicestershire County Council - North and East 
Melton Mowbray Distributor Road, Melton Mowbray.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive, a copy of which, marked ‘Agenda 
Item 9’, is filed with these minutes, as is a supplementary report which provided the 
details of a members’ site visit which took place and proposed amendments to the 
conditions set out in the main report. 
 
The Director of Law and Governance reminded members that the County Council was 
permitted to make decisions on its own planning applications and advised that the 
Development Control and Regulatory Board was exercising a regulatory function. This 
meant that when considering the application members should treat it no differently to that 
of an external applicant.  
 
In accordance with the procedures for making representations to the Board Mr. Sam 
Mellon (Sawgate Road, Burton Lazars) spoke as an objector, and Mr. Ian Vears 
(Assistant Director, Leicestershire County Council) spoke as the applicant. 
 
A local member Mr. J. B. Rhodes CC (Belvoir division) also addressed the Board. Mr 
Rhodes stated that whilst he had been contacted by two local residents who objected to 
the proposals, the majority of local residents were in favour of the application due to the 
prospect of the distributor road relieving traffic congestion and poor air quality in Melton 
Mowbray town centre.  
 
It was reported that another local member Mr. J.T. Orson CC (Melton Wolds division) was 
also in support of the application and the proposed conditions. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
(a) That the application be permitted subject to the conditions nos. 1-23 as set out in 

the appendix to the main report, subject to the amendment to condition no. 2 and 
the addition of a condition no. 24 as set out in the supplementary report. 

 

4



 
 

 

(b) That the Board confirms (as required by the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) that in 
dealing with the application the County Council worked in a positive and proactive 
manner, taking account of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 

10. 2019/0159/04 (2018/Reg3Mi/0263/LCC: Leicestershire County Council - Construction of 
a standalone single storey 3 classroom and studio modular building (to west side) - 
Newbold Verdon Primary School, Dragon Lane, Newbold Verdon.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive, a copy of which, marked ‘Agenda 
Item 10’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The local member Mr. B. Crooks CC raised concerns regarding the safety of pedestrians 
crossing Dragon Lane between the school and the park and he referred to a petition 
containing 710 signatures which he had received from local residents which asked for a 
zebra crossing to be constructed outside the school.  
 
The Board received advice from the Director of Environment and Transport in connection 
with the request for a zebra crossing and it was explained that for a formal zebra or puffin 
crossing to be justified there needed to be sufficient numbers of pedestrians crossing the 
road at four different times of the day. A survey undertaken in March 2019 had indicated 
that the numbers of pedestrians crossing were insufficient. 
 
The Chief Executive advised that the petition had been submitted too late to be formally 
considered at this meeting of the Development Control and Regulatory Board and it 
would be more appropriate for it to be considered at the meeting of the Environment and 
Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee which was taking place on 6 June 2019. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
(a) That the application be permitted subject to the conditions nos. 1-14 as set out in 

the appendix to the report. 
 
(b) That the Board confirms (as required by the Town and Country Planning 

(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) that in 
dealing with the application the County Council worked in a positive and proactive 
manner, taking account of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
11. 2018/0917/06 (2018/CM/0123/LCC):Tarmac Trading Ltd - Application for southern 

extension of sand and gravel working and restoration using site derived and imported 
inert material returning the land to a combination of agriculture, open water and nature 
conservation - Brooksby Quarry, Melton Road, Brooksby.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive, a copy of which, marked ‘Agenda 
Item 11’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
In accordance with the procedures for making representations to the Board, Tiffany Lloyd 
(Tarmac Trading Ltd) spoke as the applicant. 
 
It was reported that the local member Mr. J.T. Orson CC was in support of the 
application.  
 

5



 
 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the application be permitted subject to the conditions nos. 1-45 as set out in 
the appendix to the report, and planning obligations for the continuation of the site 
liaison committee; and monitoring of the well water level and quality (including 
appropriate trigger levels) for the maintenance of a supply of drinking water at 
Brookfield, 1883 Melton Road. 

 
(b) That the Board confirms (as required by the Town and Country Planning 

(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) that in 
dealing with the application the County Council worked in a positive and proactive 
manner, taking account of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
12. 2019/CM/0048/LCC - Acorn Recyclers - Construction of paper and plastic waste storage 

facility - Unit 11, Wymeswold Industrial Estate, Wymeswold Lane, Burton on the Wolds.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive, a copy of which, marked ‘Agenda 
Item 12’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
(a) That the application be permitted subject to the conditions nos. 1-8 as set out in the 

appendix to the report. 
 
(b) That the Board confirms (as required by the Town and Country Planning 

(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) that in 
dealing with the application the County Council worked in a positive and proactive 
manner, taking account of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
13. 2019/TPO/0077/LCC: Application to fell a Corsican pine tree protected by LCC Glen 

Parva (Leicester Road) TPO 1971 at 3 Woodbank, Glen Parva.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport, a copy of 
which, marked ‘Agenda Item 13’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
In response to questions from members the Director of Environment and Transport 
advised that each application should be considered on its own merits and individual 
circumstances, and in making a decision members were not required to follow any 
precedent set by other similar cases. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That consent be refused to fell the Corsican pine tree T1. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
The removal of the Corsican pine tree T1 would have a detrimental impact on the 
amenity of the area. 
 
 
 
 

6



 
 

 

14. 2019/TPO/0078/LCC: Application to fell a horse chestnut tree at 33, Westminster Drive, 
Burbage, protected by LCC Burbage (Coventry Road) Tree Preservation Order 1973.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport, a copy of 
which, marked ‘Agenda Item 14’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
A motion was proposed and seconded that the officer’s recommendation to permit the 
felling of the horse chestnut T1 be agreed, however the motion was not carried.  
 
Following advice from the Director of Law and Governance a motion to refuse the felling 
of the horse chestnut T1 was moved and seconded. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That consent be refused to fell the horse chestnut T1. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
The removal of the horse chestnut T1 would have a detrimental impact on the amenity of 
the area. 
 
 
 

2.00  - 3.20 pm CHAIRMAN 
23 May 2019 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND REGULATORY BOARD 
 

13th JUNE 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

APPLICATION UNDER REGULATION 3 OF THE TOWN AND 
COUNTRY PLANNING GENERAL REGULATIONS 

 
PART A – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
APP.NO. & DATE: 2019/0564/03 (2019/Reg3Mi/0080/LCC) – 5th April 2019 
 
PROPOSAL: Application for planning permission to construct new 

agricultural building to house livestock 
 
LOCATION: Penhill Farm, Cotes-de-Val, Gilmorton, LE17 4LY  

(Harborough District)  
 
APPLICANT: Leicestershire County Council 
 
MAIN ISSUE: The impact of the proposed development on the 

landscape. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT subject to the conditions as set out in the 
 appendix to the main report. 
 

Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
Mr. B. L Pain CC. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Mr. P. Larter      (Tel. 0116 305 7292) 
Email:  planningcontrol@leics.gov.uk 
 

9 Agenda Item 7



 

DC&REG. BOARD 13/06/19 

2019/0564/03 (2019/Reg3Mi/0080/LCC) - continued 
 

PART B – MAIN REPORT 
 

Description of site  
 
1. Penhill Farm is a County Council smallholding situated within the hamlet of Cotes-

de-Val.  The farm consists of a house and associated farm buildings and yard.  
The nearest residential properties are other farmsteads which form the hamlet, 
including Marriott Farm to the south east of the proposal. 

 
Description of proposal 

 
2. The proposal is to erect an open-fronted steel framed building on the western side 

of the hamlet.  The building would measure 18.29 metres x 13.00 metres with a 
height of just over 6 metres with the open front facing to the north.  The roof 
would consist of natural grey fibre cement sheeting and clear PVC sheets.  The 
lower part of the elevations and rear would be constructed of grey precast cement 
panels and the upper parts clad with timber boards.  The building is to be used for 
the housing of livestock.  The area upon which the building would be located is 
currently and predominantly an area of hardstanding.  To the north of the 
proposal are several other agricultural buildings used for housing livestock. 

 
 Planning Policy 
 

Development Plan Policies 
 

3. The relevant development plan document is the Harborough Local Plan 2011-
2031.  The relevant policies are set out below. 

 

 Policy GD3: Development in the Countryside. 
 

 Policy GD8: Good design in development. 
 
National Guidance 
 

4. The revised NPPF (National Planning Policy Framework) was published 19 
February 2019.  The document offers guidance to local planning authorities 
determining planning applications to achieve sustainable development – good 
design is a key aspect of sustainable development.   

 
Consultations 

 

Harborough District Council - Planning 
 

5. No objection. 
 

Harborough District Council – Environmental Health 
 
6. No response received. 

10



 

DC&REG. BOARD 13/06/19 

2019/0564/03 (2019/Reg3Mi/0080/LCC) - continued  
 

 
 

11



 

DC&REG. BOARD 13/06/19 

2019/0564/03 (2019/Reg3Mi/0080/LCC) – continued 
 

Gilmorton Parish Council 
 
7. No response received. 
 

Publicity  

 
8. The proposal has been advertised by neighbour letters dated 8th April 2019 and a 

site notice posted on 12th April 2019.  One representation has been received.  
The representation objects to the siting of the agricultural building claiming it will 
exacerbate already present dangers in using the access drive and requests that 
either a new access is created to Marriott farmhouse or the building is erected on 
the other side of the access drive. 

 

 Assessment of Proposal 

 
9. The application should be determined in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  In this instance, the main 
issues for consideration relate to the effect of the proposal upon the countryside 
and amenity. 
 

10. The proposed new building is to provide additional livestock housing for the farm’s 
Suckler herd as the herd has had to expand to remain viable and this would 
enable more cattle to be kept indoors.  The new building would also allow for 
better management, improved cattle handling and slurry management.  
Therefore, this proposal would improve farming practices and animal welfare, and 
would be an appropriate type of development for the countryside. 

 
11. The design and external materials of the proposed building are the same as those 

agricultural buildings to which it would be adjacent to, including that most recently 
permitted in 2012 (reference 2012/1338/03).  The height of the proposed building 
is the same as those agricultural buildings it is adjacent to and thus would be well 
related to the existing group of buildings and is considered to have no material 
impact on the character and appearance of the countryside.  There are no 
concerns of the proposal resulting in an additional harm to the amenity of those 
living nearby.  On the basis of this, the proposal would not have a significant 
negative impact on the character and appearance of the countryside and accords 
with policies GD3 and GD8. 

 
12. The representation received raises the matter of the access drive and the issues 

that arise from the farming operations of Penhill Farm being present on both sides 
of it (dangers caused from muck on the access drive and agricultural machinery 
movements across the access drive).  The access drive to the east of the M1 and 
which runs to the north of the proposal is a private road owned by the County 
Council; the County Council also owns both Penhill and Marriott Farms.  It is 
considered that the matters raised by the representation relate more to the 
management of the farming operations rather than the acceptability, in planning 
terms, of the location for the new building.  Notwithstanding this, there is a visual 
(and potentially an animal husbandry) benefit to concentrating livestock housing 
in an area both sides of the access drive rather than the buildings being located 
linearly along one side of the access drive. 

12



 

DC&REG. BOARD 13/06/19 

2019/0564/03 (2019/Reg3Mi/0080/LCC) – continued 
 

Conclusions 
 
13. The proposed new building would bring benefits to the operation of the 

agricultural holding.  The design of the building and its location would not result in 
an additional significant negative impact upon the quality or the character of the 
countryside and its proposed use is an acceptable land use in the countryside.  
There are no concerns in respect of amenity.  It is considered that, primarily, the 
issues raised by the representation received are matters for resolution by the land 
owner.  Consequently, the proposed development conforms with the policies of 
the development plan and is recommended for approval accordingly. 

 
 Recommendation 
 

A. Permit subject to the conditions, as set out in the appendix. 
 

B. To endorse, as requested by The Town & Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) Order 2015 (as amended): 

 

(i) How we have worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive 
manner:  

 In dealing with the application and reaching a decision account has 
been taken of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
Officer to Contact 
 

 Mr. P. C. Larter (Tel: 0116 305 7292) 

E-Mail planningcontrol@leics.gov.uk 

 

13



 

DC&REG. BOARD 13/06/19 

2019/0564/03 (2019/Reg3Mi/0080/LCC) – continued 

 
            Appendix 
 

Conditions 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall commence within three years of the 

date of this permission. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

submitted plans and details: including drawing PHF/901180/01 dated March 
2019, drawing PHF/901180/02 dated March 2019, and drawing PHF/901180/03 
dated 20/03/19. 

 

Reasons 
 
1. To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that development is carried out in a 
satisfactory manner in the interests of the locality.   

 
 
 

14


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2019.
	7 2019/0564/03 (2019/REG3Mi/0080/LCC) - Leicestershire County Council - Application for planning permission to construct new agricultural building to house livestock - Penhill Farm, Cotes-De-Val, Gilmorton.

